
Date Published:19 November 2018     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 21 November 2018 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence. 

Jo Moore

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2018 

Jo Moore

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To note any pecuniary or personal interests. 

Jo Moore

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

To receive an update on the work of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC). 

Cllr Kevin 
Cromwell

5  EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS ACTIVITY REPORT (Pages 11 - 18)

To consider a report on the progress of European Social Funded 
(ESF) skills and employability projects, the work of the 
Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board and other related 
employment and skills initiatives for Gloucestershire. 

Pete Carr 



    

6  GFIRST LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE (Pages 
19 - 24)

To consider: 

a) A report on the Gloucestershire Growth Deal Programme, 
including the progress of some of the Growth Deal funded 
projects, and 

b) An update on the Local Industrial Strategy for 
Gloucestershire 

Dev 
Chakraborty 

Mally Findlater 

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT PIPELINE (GEGCIP) (Pages 25 - 30)

To consider a Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment 
Pipeline (GEGCIP) mapping public face update.   

Claire Edwards 

8  STRATEGIC PLANNING CO-ORDINATION 

A verbal update from Mike Dawson, Chief Executive of Tewkesbury 
Borough Council and Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee Senior Officer Group.   

Mike Dawson 

9  GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 31 - 36)

To receive an update on the status of the Business Rate Pool and 
the governance arrangements of the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund.   

David Stanley 

10  FORWARD PLAN 

To suggest items for discussion at future meetings.   

Mike Dawson 

11  FUTURE MEETING DATES 

To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates:

Wednesday 20 March 2019
Wednesday 5 June 2019
Wednesday 4 September 2019
Wednesday 20 November 2019

All meetings start at 10.00am (this allows meetings of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee to take place 
on the same day). 

Jo Moore 



    

Membership –  Cllr Lynden Stowe Cllr Tim Gwilliam, Cllr Paul James, Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr 
Christopher Hancock, Cllr Doina Cornell and Cllr Rob Bird; Dev Chakraborty and Mally Findlater

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324196/fax: 425850/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH 
JOINT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee held 
at Shire hall on Wednesday 5 September 2018.

PRESENT: 
Cllr Paul James
Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Christopher Hancock
Cllr Lynden Stowe 
(Chair)

Cllr Doina Cornell
Cllr Roger James
Cllr Jim Mason

142. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Rob Bird (Tewkesbury Borough Council) and Cllr 
Tim Gwilliam (Forest of Dean District Council). 

Cllr Jim Mason substituted for Cllr Bird and Cllr Roger James substituted Cllr 
Gwilliam. 

143. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2018 were agreed by the Committee 
and signed as an accurate record of the meeting. 

144. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.  

145. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

1. Local held meetings

Cllr Dave Norman, Chairman of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee, outlined some of the recent activities of the committee plus an overview 
of the items to be considered at the committee meeting due to be held at Shire Hall 
later that day. 

Cllr Norman advised that the committee would be considering the current 
arrangements for hosting local held meetings, with a review of the outcomes of the 
meetings held at Tewkesbury Borough Council on 22 October 2017 and at 
Cotswold District Council on 22 February 2018. The next local held meeting would 
be held at Cheltenham Borough Council on 31 October 2018.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

2. Vision 2050 

Dr Matthew Andrews from the University of Gloucestershire gave an update on the 
Vision 2050 Big Conversation Consultation. (The consultation ended on 31 July 
2018). Dr Andrews explained why the consultation had been designated to the 
University and highlighted some of the initial findings emerging from the study. 
Expanding on some of the themes and ambitions initiated by the consultation, Dr 
Andrews agreed to explore some of the committee’s comments as part of the 
detailed analysis of the outcomes from the consultation. Dr Andrews agreed to 
report on progress at a future meeting. 

3. National Park Status for the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty

Having considered a request from the Economic Growth Joint Committee in March 
2018 to consider a proposal by the Cotswold Conservation Board to seek ‘‘National 
Park’ status for the Cotswold Area of Outstanding National Beauty (AONB), the 
Scrutiny Committee considered an update on the work being undertaken by 
Cotswold District Council (CDC) in response to a motion at the CDC Council 
meeting in May 2018. 

Members were advised that at the CDC Council meeting on 15 May 2018, 
members had considered a cross-party motion, requesting officers to carry out an 
evaluation of the potential benefits and disadvantages of designating the Cotswold 
AONB as a National Park. Engaging with other affected authorities, Cotswold 
District Council hoped to gain a better understanding of some of the implications the 
proposal might have on local residents, including the possibility of increased 
housing costs.

The motion, (proposed by Cotswold Liberal Democrat Group Leader, Councillor Joe 
Harris and Cotswold Cabinet Member for Housing, Health and Leisure, Cllr Stephen 
Hirst), received unanimous support and a proposal to undertake early preparatory 
work on issues relating to the Cotswold Conservation Board’s aspiration to seek 
National Park Status for the Cotswold AONB. 

The Scrutiny Committee noted that the Cotswold Conservation Board (CDC) was 
currently seeking to meet with CDC to discuss the proposal. (A meeting was yet to 
be arranged). Having spoken with CDC officers earlier in the week, it was confirmed 
that the District Council would be willing to participate in a countywide review.  

Noting comments from Cllrs Stephen Hirst and Joe Harris, GCC (Cotswold) 
Scrutiny Members, it was agreed to await the outcomes of the CDC review before 
considering the request to scrutinise the impact of the proposal to seek AONB 
National Park Status. It was later suggested that the Scrutiny Committee may wish 
to consider whether it would be useful to hold the proposed meeting with the 
Cotswold Conversation Board at Shire Hall, (hosted by CDC), with invitations to the 
District Authorities and key stakeholders. The suggestion would be subject to the 
agreement of the scrutiny committee. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

The request by the Economic Growth Joint Committee, (to establish a scrutiny task 
group to consider the impact of seeking National Park status for the Cotswold 
AONB), was deferred until the New Year, pending the outcome of CDC response to 
the Government Landscapes Review: Call for Evidence Consultation by Cotswold 
District Council. 

Scrutiny Committee Work Plan Considerations: -  

Brexit 
A briefing note to consider the implications of the UK leaving the EU post Brexit to 
be circulated to members. The committee requested periodical updates, as and 
when appropriate.  

Mobile Phone Coverage/Connectivity 
A presentation from mobile phone providers to consider issues affecting mobile 
phone coverage and connectivity in rural areas to be arranged in the New Year. 

Cotswold Water Park 
A member requested an update from the Cotswold Water Park Trust on current 
issues. The committee agreed to add the item on the committee work plan. 

146. STRATEGIC PLANNING CO-ORDINATION 

Mike Dawson, Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group, invited the newly 
appointed Strategic Planning Coordinator, John Baker, to present the report. 

The committee noted the progress of the work undertaken to date and received 
information on the establishment of a Leaders Board, established to achieve 
‘mutually beneficial outcomes in spatial planning for the long term future of 
Gloucestershire through collective working’. 

Outlining the proposed timetable for development of the Gloucestershire Plan, 
members were advised that a schedule of meetings had been arranged for the 
Leaders Board to meet every 6 weeks with the intention of developing the contents 
of the project plan by April 2019.

It was suggested that the subsequent phase of work, (4 to 6 months, commencing 
Spring 2019), would consider evidence and undertake wider engagement with 
district authorities, neighbouring councils and partners, taking the plan forward from 
Autumn 2019. 

Pleased with the progress of the work undertaken to date, it was agreed that the 
success and momentum of the plan depended on the collaborative arrangements 
and joint working with the districts, including South Gloucestershire. It was 
suggested that the function of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee would be useful in providing a broader perspective on some of the 
county-wide issues to be considered. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The Joint Committee noted the report and agreed the project plan proposed at 
Appendix A. The Committee also endorsed the suggestion to monitor progress and 
consider regular update reports at future meetings. 

147. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of the GFirst Local Enterprise 
Partnership, gave an update on the progress of the Growth Deal funded projects 
included in the Gloucestershire Growth Deal Programme. Members were informed 
that, since consideration of the last report, in June 2018, a significant number of 
projects had come to fruition. 

Key projects included: work on the Merrywalks Shopping Centre in Stroud; the 
newly expanded Growth Hub and Business School at the Oxstalls Campus; work 
on the A40 Over Roundabout and the Metz Way/Abbeymead Improvement 
Schemes; completion of the Gloucester Transport Hub, (October 2018), and the 
opening of the GlosCol Cinderford Campus. 

It was reported that there had been some challenges in finalising the funding 
agreement for the Cheltenham Spa Railway Station scheme, but that work with 
GWR continued to be ongoing on the detailed design and tendering processes. 
Work was anticipated to commence in November 2018.  

In respect of EU Funding, members were informed that those programmes funded 
by the main European Funding Streams were delivering on schedule. An updated 
spend strategy, (to reflect changes in the European Exchange Rate), would be 
produced in the next few weeks. 

Publication of the ‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships Review’ had 
resulted in a series of recommendations from which the Government hoped to 
improve local governance and the performance of the 38 LEP’s. Key 
recommendations included; the requirement for LEP’s to produce an annual 
delivery plan and end of year report; wider consultation; increased number of 
private sector representatives on the Local Enterprise Board; improvements in 
gender balance, and increased representation of those representatives with 
protected characteristics.

Members were advised that up to £20 million of additional funding would be 
available between 2018 to 2019 and 2019 to 2020. In addition, increased funding 
would be available to support the joint bid between the County Council and the 6 
districts aimed at setting up a dedicated team from which to focus on improving 
inward investment across the county. A successful outcome was anticipated.  

Acknowledging the names of the 2 new board members that had been appointed to 
the LEP Board, the report was noted. It was suggested that a more comprehensive 
report be presented at the next committee meeting and this was agreed. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

148. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

A progress report on the work of the Employment and Skills Board was noted. 

In the absence of the Lead Commissioner: Skills and Employment, members were 
advised to direct any questions to pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk. 

Nigel Riglar: Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, confirmed 
the appointment of a new Chair to the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills 
Board, (GESB). Nigel advised that Clare Marchant, Chief Executive of UCAS and 
former Chief Executive of Worcestershire County Council had accepted the position 
of Chair of the Board in April 2018. 

He also confirmed that Pete Carr, (Lead Commissioner: Skills and Employment), 
had reached the end of his secondment with the County Council but had agreed to 
extend the agreement for a further 2 years.

Committee Chair, Cllr Lynden Stowe, said he was pleased with the appointment of 
the new Chair and welcomed the headway in which Clare was taking the role 
forward.  

149. LNP GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE POLICY PLEDGE 

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, outlined an 
invitation from the Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (GLNP) to enter an 
agreement known as the Green Infrastructure Pledge. 

The Commissioning Director highlighted the importance of establishing a well 
planned green infrastructure for Gloucestershire and proposed that the committee 
support the objectives set out by the pledge and encourage the 6 other local 
authorities within Gloucestershire to sign up to the agreement. He explained that, 
whilst there would be no direct financial implications for the Joint Committee, each 
local authority would need to consider the resource implications for that authority as 
part of its consideration of the proposals. 

The Commissioning Director informed the committee that all 7 local authorities 
within Gloucestershire were partners of the GLNP. At the GLNP conference due to 
be held on 26 October 2018, the proposal to sign up to the Green Infrastructure 
Pledge would be considered, including the proposal to commit to the development 
and maintenance of the green infrastructure of the county by considering it as part 
of the core business activities for that authority. 

The Joint Committee noted the recommendations, and agreed, in principle, to 
support the proposal for the Joint Committee to sign up to the pledge, prior to 
consideration at the GLNP Conference on 26 October 2018. The Joint Committee 
requested confirmation of the decision taken by each of the district authorities at the 
conference in October and proposed that a third recommendation be added to the 
proposals, proposing that the outcomes of the conference be fed back to the 

Page 5

mailto:pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

committee at the next meeting as part of the Senior Officer Group update report. 
This was agreed. 

In noting the report, the committee 

RESOLVED to: - 

a) Recognise the importance of well planned green infrastructure, support the 
objectives of the pledge and encourage each of the member councils to 
consider signing it; 

b) Request that periodic reports, at least annually, are brought forward, 
illustrating how each of the 7 member councils take the pledge forward; and 

c) That the Senior Officer Group (SOG) report back to the Joint Committee at 
its next meeting on the decision taken by each of the 7 member councils to 
sign up to the pledge.  

150. ECONOMIC INTELLIGENCE 

Claire Edwards, Team Leader for Economic Growth and Strategic Planning at 
Gloucestershire County Council, updated members on the outcomes of the 
activities of the officer working group set up by the Senior Officer Group to improve 
the collation of data and intelligence across the County and to better understand 
the commissioning needs required to help strengthen core economic proposals and 
support future economic growth investment activities. 

In presenting the report, members noted the recommended actions to agree to the 
release of funds from which to support future economic activities and investments 
for the county.  

Whilst supporting the recommended actions 1) and 3) to: 

1) Note the progress of the working group and the availability of the economic 
intelligence summary document, for ease of reference, (available on 
INFORM), and promoted via GFirst and partner websites; and: - 

3) Note that, following officer training on the LEFM, members will be provided 
with the opportunity to help shape the range of growth scenarios considered 
within the forecasting tool, at a future Joint Committee meeting 

The committee requested further consideration of the recommended 
action 2) to: 

2) Agree to the request to release £50,000 from the Business Rate Pool 
Strategic Economic Development Fund to support future commissioning 
activity to help strengthen the core economic baseline,

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

The Joint Committee also requested further consideration of the action by the 
Senior Officer Group, including a report back to the committee at the next meeting. 
 

151. GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATE POOL 

David Stanley: Accountancy Manager at Stroud District Council updated members 
on the 2018/19 forecast of the 100% Business Rates Pilot and new proposals for a 
Pilot in 2019/20. 

The Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool was set up in 2013/14 to maximise the 
business rate income retained within the County and to support economic growth 
within the project areas administered by the GFirst LEP. It was confirmed that the 
outturn for 2017/18 had been very positive, with £3.992m of additional business 
rates income retained. The additional income was allocated in accordance with the 
Pool Governance arrangements, with 20%, (£0.798m), of the surplus set aside for 
the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF). The cumulative amount of 
funding generated by the Business Pool for the SEDF since 2013/14 totalled 
£1.134m. 

The report confirmed that the Business Rates Pilot 2018/19, (involving all 7 
Gloucestershire Councils), would end on 31 March 2019. Initial financial modelling 
undertaken as part of the application process over the summer suggested a 
potential benefit from the pilot of £10m, increasing to a forecast benefit of £14m. 
Members were advised that the forecasted benefit could reduce to take into 
account any prior-year adjustments. 

A consultation paper issued in July 2018, (on the 2019/20 Local Government 
Finance Settlement), included information on the process for submitting bids for 
business rates pilot schemes in 2019/20. Gloucestershire, alongside other local 
authorities throughout England, will be eligible to submit an application to engage in 
the business rates retention pilot scheme 2019/20. Applications to be submitted by 
25 September 2018. 

Members were informed that the main change from the current (100%) scheme was 
a reduction in the local share from 100% to 75%. Another important change was 
that there would no longer be a ‘no detriment’ clause. Members expressed concern 
about the heightened level of risk from joining the new scheme and suggested a 
more in-depth discussion might be required for the committee to consider future 
options. To engage in the new pilot, a decision on the share of business rates the 
district authorities would be required to pay the County Council would need to be 
considered.  

Considering the recommendations proposed at the meeting, and noting the level of 
support from Business Pool members, it was agreed to support the proposal to join 
the 2019/20 pilot scheme as an ‘in principle’ decision only, pending the outcomes of 
the County Section 151 Officer meeting on 12 September 2018. 

In considering the recommendation to release funds from the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund for the commissioning of countywide economic investments, 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

(including proposals to develop Junction 10 on the M5 Motorway), several members 
expressed concerns about the risk involved in making a decision at this present 
time, particularly when the amount of reserve funding would not be known until 
January 2019. 
To demonstrate to the LEP, (and to help secure Homes England Funding for the 
County), the Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure advised that 
it would be useful to agree an ‘in principle’ decision for the transfer of reserves from 
the Strategic Economic Development Fund to support some of the proposals 
included within the current Strategic Economic Plan .  

Following a detailed and in-depth discussion, the committee agreed to defer the 
decision to allocate SEDF funding to i) support the M5 Junction 10 improvement 
scheme, and ii) support the work of the LEP and GCC Data and Analysis Team. A 
further discussion to be held at the 21 November 2018 committee meeting. 

Furthermore, it was suggested that the Senior Officer Group (SOG) be requested to 
consider the eligibility criteria and project approval process for the assessment of 
future funding bids from the Strategic Economic Development Fund and to make 
recommendations to the Joint Committee at a future meeting. 

The committee noted the report and: -  

1. Note the forecast for 2018/19

2. Consider the scope for a pilot bid for 2019/20
3. Agree ‘in principle’ the allocation of £275,000 reserves currently held in the 

Strategic Economic Development Fund for the purposes of revenue funding 
contributions/providing support for the M5 Junction 10 improvement 
scheme (Reserve funding will be available from January 2019); and 

4. Defer the decision to allocate £50,000 of reserves currently held in the 
Strategic Economic Development Fund, (to be used for the purposes of 
commissioning additional economic intelligence to support the work of the 
LEP and GCC Data and  Analysis Team, and in refreshing the current 
Strategic Economic Plan and working towards the preparation of an 
Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire). Reserve funding will be available 
from January 2019. 

152. FORWARD PLAN 

Subject to the following suggestions proposed at the meeting, the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee Forward Plan 2018/19 was noted and agreed. 

1) The decision to ‘Defer consideration of the proposal to allocate £50,000 of 
reserves currently held in the Strategic Economic Development Fund, (to be 
used for the purposes of commissioning additional economic intelligence to 
support the work of the LEP and GCC Data and  Analysis Team, and in 
refreshing the current Strategic Economic Plan and working towards the 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

preparation of an Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire), to be considered at 
the committee meeting on 21 November 2018; 

2) The request to consider the impact of Brexit on the Gloucestershire economy 
to be considered at the committee meeting in March 2019. A briefing note to 
be circulated to members after the meeting. 

3) The Senior Officer Group to consider issues affecting market towns and 
report back to the committee at a future meeting. 

153. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

The dates of future meetings 2018/19 were noted as: - 

Wednesday 21 November 2018
Wednesday 20 March 2019
Wednesday 5 June 2019
Wednesday 4 September 2019
Wednesday 20 November 2019

All meetings to start at 10.00am (this will allow the meetings of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee to take place the same day at 13.30pm).

CHAIRPERSON

The Chairman thanked Commissioning Director, Nigel Riglar, for his input into the 
committee and wished him well on his new position at South Gloucestershire Council.    

The Chairman also wished David Hagg, Chief Executive at Stroud District Council, a long 
and happy retirement. Mr Hagg was due to retire in October 2018.  

Meeting concluded at Midday 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS ACTIVITY UPDATE

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) and Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee

November 21st 2018

Report author Pete Carr
Pete.Carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk and Peter.Carr@gfirstlep.com

Background 
documents

Gloucestershire ESIF Strategy 
Employment and Skills Board Update provided at September  2018 GEGJC 
meeting

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board background information and 
documents can be found at https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/
(NB This section will be updated in September 2018)

The ESIF Strategy can be found at http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-
Priorities/Our-Vision/ and the original rationales for each of the projects below 
can be found in the relevant sections of the Strategy.

An overview of the various EU-funded projects in the county can be found at 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/European-Funding/

Main consultees Managing authorities for European Social Funding, opt-in organisations 
(Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), Big Lottery and Department 
of Work and Pensions (DWP)) and project managers in contracted 
organisations, members of Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board

Planned dates N/A
Purpose of report To update the GEGJC and Joint Scrutiny Committee members on progress 

to date with European Social Fund (ESF) skills and employability projects, 
the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board and related employment 
and skills initiatives.

Recommendations
To update GEGJC and Joint Scrutiny Committee members on progress to 
date with Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board.

Reasons for 
recommendations

 N/A

Resource 
Implications

N/A

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Pete.Carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Carr@gfirstlep.com
https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/European-Funding/


2

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

1. Update on progress of Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board

1.1 Membership
Following further work to strengthen the private sector and health and social care employer 
representation and ‘voice’ on the Board, board members have been recruited for 17 out of a 
total of 18 available places. 

1.2 Public sector representation and links with key committees/Boards
As reported previously, the Board currently includes two public sector employer 
representatives, Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member – Economy, Skills and Growth continues 
to represent Gloucestershire County Council on the Board with Cllr. Steve Lydon from Stroud 
District Council representing the District Councils. Cllr Stowe provides the link to the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), Cllr Lydon the link to the 
Gloucestershire European Structural Investment Funds (ESIF) Committee and Russell 
Marchant, Principal of Hartpury College and GFirst LEP Board member provides the link to the 
GFirst LEP Board.

1.3 Engagement with Districts on employment and skills priorities
The GESB has deliberately taken a cross-Gloucestershire approach so initiatives and 
programmes should be able to link with most/all Districts to support their locally identified 
employment and skills needs. What doesn’t yet seem to have been resolved is the most 
effective way of sharing information between District leads on employment and skills and those 
working cross-county (GCC & GFirst LEP). Options being explored include sharing of updates 
of the GESB Action Plan; sharing of consultation versions of local plans by Districts to identify 
and highlight links with national and cross-county employment and skills priorities and 
initiatives; more regular information-sharing meetings with District strategic directors and/or 
senior officers. 

GEGJC members are requested to advise how best to improve this situation in order to 
manage expectations amongst District council members and officers. 

1.4 Specific support for District employment and skills initiatives
Forest Economic Partnership (FEP) - GCC and GFirst LEP are supporting the education and 
skills workstream and plans for the ‘Inspire the Forest’ (IF) event/s. 

Stroud DC - Similar support has been provided for Stroud Ambitions careers event and support 
has been requested by the organisers of the Festomaine programme for financial and staff 
support for 2019 and beyond.

Cheltenham BC, Gloucester CC, Cotswold DC and Tewkesbury BC - Initial discussions with 
members and officers have taken place to identify further work to link the local economic plans 
and county and national employment and skills priorities. 

1.5 GESB input to strategies and future funding opportunities

1.5.1 Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) Refresh – This has been managed by GFirst LEP and 
the GESB priorities (see below) have been referenced in this document along with updates on 
progress via Growth Deal and ESIF project funding.

Page 12



3

1.5.2 Gloucestershire Local Industrial Strategy – This is also being led and co-ordinated by 
GFirst LEP and the GESB will have significant input into the employment and skills aspects of 
the GLIS. These will include focus on maximising productivity through cyber and digital skills 
and technologies. GFirst LEP will work closely with other LEPs and with Government to review 
and learn from the first group of local industrial strategies produced by LEPs.

2. Additional European Social Fund (ESF) to support Gloucestershire Employment and 
Skills priorities

2.1 Skills - We have secured £1.8 million of additional ESF funding to work with those at risk of 
becoming or who are already Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET). With the 
support of the GESB and ESIF committee, this resource will be focused on helping to tackle the 
high rate of permanent exclusions from schools in Gloucestershire and so prevent some young 
people becoming NEET. Invitations to Tender (ITTs) closed in September 2018 and a contract 
should be announced by the end of 2018. Contracts will run from 1st April 2019 to July 2021. 
The prime contractor will be required to work closely with GCC, GFirst LEP and the GESB to 
develop and report against an action plan, as well as working collaboratively with other key 
stakeholders e.g. academies/schools/multi-academy trusts with high permanent exclusion 
rates.

2.2 Employability and social inclusion – Discussions ongoing with DWP and Big Lottery over 
securing additional funding to extend the Work Start and GEM projects respectively. Expected 
decisions from both organisations in Autumn 2018. The Work Start contract being delivered by 
learndirect in Gloucestershire has been novated to Dimensions Training Solutions (DTS) 
following the acquisition of learndirect Limited by DTS. 

3. UK Shared Prosperity Fund development
Discussions are underway with the Local Government Association (LGA), BEIS and the LEP 
Network to highlight to the team designing the new UK Shared Prosperity Fund what will be 
needed both in terms of employment and skills resources and in Gloucestershire. As this fund 
will be a significant channel for ‘follow-on’ funding from ESIF and Growth Deal this will be a key 
resource for the GESB to access and direct/prioritise investment from.

4.1 Key priorities of GESB

 Apprenticeships
 Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand
 Stronger links between schools, colleges and businesses
 Improved, impartial careers support for schools and colleges based on accurate and up-

to-date Labour Market Information
 Employment and skills influence on and input to the Gloucestershire Local Industrial 

Strategy

4.2 Progress on key priorities/activities and summary of next steps

4.2.1 Apprenticeships

Recent progress
GCC Apprenticeship Project Co-Ordinator in post and working effectively to strengthen 
planning and uptake of apprenticeships across GCC, Gloucester City Council and provide 
some support for cross-county support for the GESB on its apprenticeship priorities. GCC has 
been successful in securing some project support via the Local Government Association (LGA) 

Page 13



4

to accelerate apprenticeship uptake and this project is now underway, focusing initially on the 
children’s services workforce.

The first National Apprenticeship Show to be held in Gloucestershire took place on October 3rd 
and 4th at Cheltenham Racecourse. http://www.nationalapprenticeshipshow.org/west/ This 
major event took place for the first time in Gloucestershire in early October to bring together 
those considering apprenticeships with local and national employers offering apprenticeships. 
GCC and GFirst LEP staff will be meeting with the organisers in November to review the event 
numbers, feedback, travel subsidy and pricing to inform the 2019 event.

Immediate next steps
Ensure ESFA data cube and reporting mechanism on apprenticeships in the county is available 
to GESB and GCC Apprenticeship Project Co-Ordinator.

4.2.2 Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand

Recent progress
Initial contact with DWP Fuller Working Lives team to identify and share good practice and start 
to scope out a Gloucestershire project.

Immediate next steps
Continue work with DWP Fuller Working Lives team and prepare a project plan for local project. 
Via GFirst LEP, Growth Hub and District colleagues, identify local businesses with effective 
flexible working practices and knowledge transfer/succession planning arrangements in place. 
Seek funding/resource for project work and dissemination.

4.2.3 Stronger links between schools, colleges and businesses

Recent progress
33 schools and colleges now engaged in the Enterprise Adviser Network managed by GFirst 
LEP Education and Skills Team (up from 22 in March 2018), 22 Enterprise Advisers have been 
recruited and 14 of these are already matched with and working with schools and colleges in 
the network. Enterprise Advisers offer strategic support to schools and colleges. There will be a 
further recruitment drive to increase the number of Enterprise Advisers, induct them and match 
them to schools. 

Reports are now being produced showing how the schools in Gloucestershire have self-
assessed against the eight Gatsby benchmarks 
https://www.careersandenterprise.co.uk/schools-colleges/understand-gatsby-benchmarks
and these reports will be made available to the GESB at regular intervals. If GEGJC members 
or District colleagues would welcome these reports too, then please contact Pete Carr 
pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

District Council colleagues are encouraged to support this recruitment drive by volunteering as 
Enterprise Advisers and/or promoting the value and impact that EAs bring 
https://www.careersandenterprise.co.uk/employers/become-enterprise-adviser as well as 
working with GFirst LEP to influence the schools and academies that have not yet joined the 
Enterprise Adviser Network. To do this, please contact education@gfirstlep.com or contact 
Pete Carr pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Funding from National Grid, GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire County Council and the Careers 
Enterprise Company (CEC) has been secured for two years for a new Enterprise Co-Ordinator 
role to work with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) schools and students and 
to work closely with other High Needs support role/s in GCC and in special schools. This role is 
being recruited for currently and a new programme administrator role will also be filled.

Page 14

http://www.nationalapprenticeshipshow.org/west/
https://www.careersandenterprise.co.uk/schools-colleges/understand-gatsby-benchmarks
mailto:pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk
https://www.careersandenterprise.co.uk/employers/become-enterprise-adviser
mailto:education@gfirstlep.com
mailto:pete.carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk


5

The two Gloucestershire bids to the CEC Challenge Fund to deliver mentoring support to 
children in care/looked after children and to provide more effective careers support to high 
needs students and their parents were unsuccessful. However, this closer working between 
GFirst LEP, GCC, the Virtual School and Prospects Training Services has led to some further 
development of the Local Offer and more integrated High Needs support to underpin the new 
16-24 Strategy. UCAS has identified a group of volunteers from its staff to support the work of 
the GESB and expand work experience opportunities in the county. 

Within this priority, the GESB has identified the importance of improved and more extensive 
work experience opportunities. There is considerable risk of there being insufficient work 
experience placements being available when the new Technical level (T-level) qualifications are 
brought in from 2020 onwards. Further resources will be needed to ensure that sufficient and 
suitable work experience opportunities are made available and the GESB will be working to 
clarify the necessary resource needs in the next few months, as well as reviewing the 
curriculum materials and the reports prepared by South Gloucestershire and Stroud College as 
part of its ESF project focused on work experience in SMEs (the EDGE project 
http://www.gottheedge.co.uk/ ).

Immediate next steps
Complete recruitment for the SEND Enterprise Co-Ordinator and administration support roles to 
work across GFirst LEP and GCC. Work with Clare Marchant and UCAS team to develop a 
work plan for the project group. Investigate and scope more fully the likely impact of the work 
experience element of T-Levels so that a suitable awareness raising and engagement 
campaign can be developed with local businesses. Work with the newly appointed ESFA T-
levels team to ensure messaging to stakeholders about T-levels is strong and consistent.

4.2.4 Improved, impartial careers support for schools and colleges based on accurate 
and up-to-date Labour Market Information

Recent progress
The Gloucestershire business skills survey funded by GCC and delivered by Wavehill has been 
completed and we are awaiting the final report once Wavehill has corrected errors in their draft 
report. The final report will be shared with GESB, GEGJC and LEP Board as well as with 
school careers leads, enterprise advisers, local careers advisers, etc. Findings from the survey 
will be used to inform the development of the Gloucestershire Local Industrial Strategy. 

The ‘Burning Glass’ LMI tool being used to produce monthly reports shared with school and 
college careers leads and with Enterprise Advisers secured for a further year. Initial discussions 
are ongoing with EMSI to secure additional local labour market information. GFirst LEP 
Education and Skills team has had initial discussions with colleagues in UCAS to explore 
further ways of enabling schools and colleges to fully utilise UCAS’ careers pathways 
information. 

Immediate next steps
Dissemination of Gloucestershire business skills survey findings and key recommendations to 
relevant stakeholders. Continue production and dissemination of LMI using Burning Glass, 
EMSI and any other tools/resources as appropriate. Continue work with UCAS colleagues to 
identify and action further careers support needs and solutions. 

5. Update on other employment and skills issues

5.1 Adult Education Budget (AEB)

Page 15

http://www.gottheedge.co.uk/


6

The regulation on Skills Devolution has now gone through Parliament. 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/adult-education-budget-aeb-devolution This confirms that from the 
2019 to 2020 academic year (1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020), the Government will devolve the 
Adult Education Budget (AEB) to the following 6 combined authorities and through a delegation 
agreement to the Mayor of London for the Greater London Authority (GLA):

 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough

 Greater Manchester

 Liverpool City Region

 Tees Valley

 West Midlands

 West of England

From the 2019 to 2020 academic year, AEB allocations will be based on providers’ delivery in 
the 2017 to 2018 academic year. This is a change from ESFA’s approach of maintaining 
allocation levels year on year. It also means that providers who deliver to non-devolved 
residents only, may see a change in their allocation level. This may therefore affect the AEB 
allocation for Gloucestershire so the Gloucestershire Adult Education Service managed by 
GCC will work closely with the ESFA and with colleagues in the devolved and non-devolved 
areas to understand the likely impacts. The ESFA will confirm non-devolved allocations for the 
2019 to 2020 academic year before the end of March 2019.

5.2 Institute of Technology (IoT) bids affecting Gloucestershire
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/institutes-of-technology-competition 
Institutes of Technology (IoTs) are intended to be high-quality, employer-led institutions 
specialising in providing higher level technical skills for employers. Two of the final sixteen IoT 
bids cover Gloucestershire and on 1 October 2018 Government released the final stage 2 
guidance for IoTs to these final sixteen and it expects to announce the outcome of the 
competition in March 2019.

The two IoT bids covering Gloucestershire are shown below and both bids are being finalised 
prior to submission in November. Both will enable skills capital funding to be accessed and 
used within the County to increase high level skills provision for businesses and individuals.

Lead 
applicant

Other anchor partners Sector specialisms

Swindon College New College Swindon, University of 
Gloucestershire, Nationwide, 
Catalent Pharma Solutions, 
Excalibur Communications Ltd, 
Bath ASU

Advanced Engineering and High 
Value Manufacturing, Digital, IT and 
Creative Industries, Health and Life 
Sciences

Weston College 
of Further and 
Higher Education

Bath College, Gloucestershire 
College, Yeovil College, University 
of the West of England, Bristol, 
Airbus, GE Aviation, GKN 
Aerospace, JISC, National 

Engineering (including Aviation), Hi-
Tech Digital & Creative, Health & 
Social Care, High Value 
Manufacturing, Medical Technical

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/adult-education-budget-aeb-devolution
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/adult-education-budget-aeb-devolution
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/institutes-of-technology-competition


7

Composites Centre, North 
Somerset Council, Mayden 
Academy, Renishaw, St Monica 
Trust, Tech Op Solutions Ltd, 
Weston Area Health NHS Trust

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



GFIRST LEP UPDATE FOR GEGJC MEETING

21 NOVEMBER 2018

Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) Gloucestershire Growth Deal – attachments 

Attached to this report are the most up to date spreadsheets (up to 30th September 
2018) for the Growth Deal Programme. These highlight;

i) ‘Forward Look’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded projects 
with a focus on their current status. 

ii) ‘Projects Summary’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded 
projects to highlight forecasted outputs from each project. NB on all 
metrics, the forecast exceeds the total commitment in the Growth Deal. 

These documents are also available on GFirst LEP’s website; 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/ 

2) Growth Deal – ‘Headlines’ (to end of Q2)

To date we have ‘out turned’ £56.2m from a total of £101.7m. Actual project spend 
to date is £52m. The lag between these two figures is where we have out turned 
funds to approved schemes with funding agreements under the delegated transport 
schemes arrangements with Gloucestershire County Council. 

Confirmed jobs created to date are 1671 across the programme. The total number of 
jobs created to date is slightly below expectations. However, the roll-out of the 
Growth Hub Network and the opening of the expanded Growth Hub at Oxstalls in 
September should accelerate the jobs growth achieved. 

Total expected leverage for the programme is well above target both in terms of 
direct match confirmed to date (£74m out of a total of £102m) and also ‘follow-on’ 
investment with a total leverage now expected in excess of £350m with £136m 
already confirmed. 

Recent highlights include the confirmation of c£27m investment in the Merrywalks 
re-development, a second phase of student accommodation on the Blackfriars site 
gaining planning approval (a further 190 students units) and confirmation of the 
Skyborne commercial pilot training centre at Gloucestershire Airport which will 
leverage significant capital investment.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


Other highlights :- 

The Gloucester Transport Hub now fully open.

The funding agreement for the Cheltenham Spa Railway Station scheme has now 
been signed and the scheme design approved to the GRIP5 stage.

GlosCol Cinderford Campus now fully open.

Hartpury University Agri-Tech Hub (‘Tech to Plate’) has now been fully approved for 
funding and a funding agreement will be in place by December.

3) Gloucestershire Inward Investment bid

This is the joint bid with the County Council and the six District Councils bidding for 
European funding to set up a dedicated team to focus on inward investment in the 
county, in particular foreign direct investment.

With further ‘in kind’ support from a number of the local districts our bid increased from 
£750k to £1 million (50% request for ERDF funding).

10th November 2017 - Expression of Interest submitted
  
30th May 2018 - Full application submitted 

8th October 2018 – Notification letter received, grant approved in principle; seven pre-
contract conditions and two post funding agreement conditions needed to be satisfied

26th October 2018 – five pre-contract conditions now satisfied. 

Recruitment adverts for three new posts are currently being advertised; Team Leader, 
Executive & Admin/Marketing role.

We are aiming to have the team in place in January 2019.

4) GFirst LEP Annual Review at Hartpury University

Wednesday 14th November – 380 delegates booked.

Three key requests for help were made;

i) Looking for volunteers to work with schools across the county through our 
Education Team.

ii) To express an interest in joining one of our sector specific Business Groups.
iii) Signing up younger audience (under 40) to engage and be willing to work with 

us on the development of a Local Industrial Strategy for the county.

Page 20



Growth Deal Projects 'Forward Look' Key  Milestones (pipeline schemes)

(Based on latest  information at time of publication) Assessment/Due Diligence

Sep‐18 Inv Panel/LEP  Board

Rev 15 Funding agreement (subject to board approval)

Notes Formal project launch 

All pipeline projects are still subject to  investment appraisal and LEP Board approval  Start of construction/implementation

FY 18/19 Q4 FY 2019/20 Q1 FY 2019/20 Q2 FY 2019/20 Q3 FY 2019/20 Q4 FY 2020/21 Q1 FY 2020/21 Q2 FY 2020/21 Q3 FY 2020/21 Q4

LGF 2021

Project Title Category Summary Status RAG Rating £m's Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan‐Mar Apr‐Jun Jul‐Sept Oct‐Dec Jan‐Mar Apr‐Jun Jul‐Sept Oct‐Dec Jan‐Mar

Growth Hub Expansion
Business 
Support

Expanded Core Growth Hub and New 
Business School @ UoG

Now Open  £5.000
Est 

Completion

Growth Hub Network
Business 
Support

Network of Growth Hubs across the 
county

Cirencester, Twekesbury now 
open. FoD, Stroud due Spring 

2019.
£4.400

Est 
Completion

Merrywalks Centre Stroud***
Business 
Support

Re‐development of the Merrywalks 
Shopping Center and Car‐Park

Contractors on site. Phase 1, car 
park improvements in work.

£3.000
Inv 

Panel/Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Est 
Completion

Farm 491
Business 
Support

Agri‐tech innovation and business 
incubator centre (RAU)

Both Centres now fully open. £2.920
Est 

Completion

Gloucs Airport Anson Park 
Development***

Enabling 
Infrastructure

Access road from B4063 to expand 
Anson Park

Indicative funding approved. In 
development

£1.885 Due Diligence
Inv Panel/ 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
Phase

Est 
Completion

Gloucs Airport South Camp
Enabling 

Infrastructure
New access road to open up land for 

development
Project complete, first new 

build complete Dec17
£0.550

UK Digital Retail Innovation 
Centre

Business 
Support

Retail skills & digital high street pilot 
scheme

Contractors on site Sept 2018. £0.400
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

Cheltenham Cyber Park *
Enabling 

Infrastructure
Road and other infrastructure to 
facilitate Cheltenham Cyber Park 

Planning Application in 
Preparation

£22.000
DfT Retain 
assessment

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

Gloucester Railway Station 
Improvements***

Enabling 
Infrastructure

Redevelopment of underpass, 
frontage and car park access

Indicative funding approved. In 
development

£3.750 Due Diligence
Inv 

Panel/Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Est 
Completion

Cinderford Northern Link Road
Enabling 

Infrastructure

Access road enabling new college 
campus and first phase of 

development of Northern Qtr, 
Complete and fully open £3.800

A40 Longford Traffic Scheme Housing
Traffic mitigation to release a strategic 

housing site
Business Case in Preparation £4.530 Due Diligence

Inv 
Panel/Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est 
Completion

Blackfriars & Quayside Housing
De‐risking and preparation of site for 

development
Site preparation and demolition 

now complete. 
£4.130

Est 
Completion

Hartpury College Tech to 
Plate***

Innovation
Application of Digital Productivity 
Tools in Livestock Management

Approved for funding Sept 
2018.

£1.000 Due Diligence Inv Panel Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

GREEN Skills Centre Skills
Gloucs Renewable Energy, 

Engineering & Nuclear Skills Centre
Building complete, now fully 

open.
£5.000

Berkley Green Cyber Security 
Centre

Skills
Cyber Security skills centre, dual 

location UoG & Berkely
Building complete, now fully 

open.
£3.000

Gloucestershire College New 
Campus (Cinderford)

Skills
Funding to support build of new 
Gloscol campus in Cinderford

Building complete, now fully 
open.

£2.600
Est 

Completion

Gloucestershire STEM centres Skills
STEM teaching facility upgrades at 5 

sites across Gloucs.
Complete, now in delivery 

phase.
£2.096

Elmbridge (Tail End Major DfT 
scheme)

Transport
Major roundabout upgrade A40, key 

strategic route.
Complete. Opened Sept 2017. £9.070

Gloucester Transport Hub** Transport
New Transport Hub for Gloucester & 

highways mods
On track to complete Oct 2018 £6.400

Est 
Completion

A419 Stonehouse Improvements Transport
Junction improvements along A419 
between M5 J13 and Stonehouse

In Design/Procurement £4.360
Construction 

start
Est 

Completion

A40 Over Roundabout ** Transport
Widening approaches to the 

roundabout & provision of a third 
circulatory lane 

Complete Sept 2018. £2.230
Construction 

start
Est 

Completion

Gloucester South West By Pass Transport
Widening of Llanthony Road section 

of South West bypass. 
In Design/Procurement £2.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

GCC Cabinet 
Approval

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

A38 Berkeley Bridges Transport Replacement Northbound bridge Complete June 2017 £1.990

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction Transport
Upgrade to the B4063/Old Gloucester 

Road junction
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.600

Inv Panel & 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

Cheltenham Spa Railway 
Station**

Transport
Improvement to station forecourt, 

additional parking and 
cycle/pedestrian access to A40

In Design/Procurement £1.497
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

Lydney Transport Strategy Transport
Local junction improvements and 

cycle access
Final Business Case Submitted 

for Assessment
£1.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

St Barnabas Roundabout Transport
Roundabout upgrade, improved 

cycling safety
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.000

Inv Panel & 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Construction 
start

Abbeymead /Metz Way** Transport
Junction & Pedestrian Crossing 

upgrades (smart signals)
Contractors on site July 2018 £0.500

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

* DfT 'Retained' scheme currently Sub‐Total (committed) £101.708

** Original GLTB scheme Agreed Govt Profile £101.716

***Re‐allocated scheme Variance £0.008

Construction Phase In Operation

Scheme Development

Detail Design and Procurement Construction Phase

Final Business case ‐ 
Due Diligence

Scheme Development

Construction PhaseDetailed Design, Land Aquisition & Planning

In OperationConstruction PhaseDetailed Design & Procurement

In Operation

Final Business case ‐ 
Due Diligence

Scheme Development Construction Phase

Funding Agreement

Full Business Case Development

In Operation

Construction Phase

In OperationUnder Construction

Detailed design, planning and procurement phase Construction Phase

Construction Phase Delivery Phase

Full Business Case Development

Investment/Development Phase

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Delivery PhaseConstruction/Re‐development

Final Business case ‐ 
Due Diligence

Construction PhaseDetailed design and procurement phase

Delivery Phase

Masterplan Development Construction Phase

In delivery phase

Delivery PhaseUnder Construction

In Operation

Planning Stage

Design & Planning

Now complete and fully open

2020

Delivery Phase

Delivery Phase

Programme of work from Masterplan 

Delivery PhaseConstruction phase

Programme Development and Individual Scheme 
Approvals 

FY 2018/19 Q3FY 2017/18 Q4 FY 2018/19 Q1 FY 2018/19 Q2

In delivery phase

20192018

In delivery phase

Digital Infrastructure Complete, Tier 1 & Tier 2 Network Centres in Progress, Library Centres in Progress

Construction Phase

Delivery Phase

Construction Phase

Under Construction

Planning Stage

Construction start (ahead of Funding 
Agreement at risk)

Full Business Case Development

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary Key
As at 30-9-18 Funding approved and progressing

Funding allocated but pending final board approval
Current Total Forecasts with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's
Public Sector 
Leverage £m's

Commercial 
Floorspace m2 

Employment 
Land Ha

Skills 
Capital m2 App'ships

BCR (Road 
schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 9,400,000£             Business Support 0 6644 £0.05 £27.6 1477 0 3800 0 N/A

Merrywalks Centre, Stroud* 3,000,000£             Business Support TBC 500 £27.0 £0.0 20292 1.37 0 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£             Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport Anson Park Development* 1,885,000£             Business Support 0 85 £7.0 £0.0 7500 4 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport South Camp 550,000£                Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre 400,000£                Business Support 0 50 £0.2 £0.0 550 0 150 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£           Enabling Infrastructure 1100 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements* 3,750,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 550 300 £7.7 £0.6 10000 5.3 0 0 N/A

A40 Innsworth Gateway* 4,530,000£             Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£             Housing 250 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Hartpury College, Tech‐to‐Plate 1,000,000£             Innovation 0 15 £0.0 £0.0 0 0.0 500 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£             Skills 0 125 £19.5 £15.1 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£             Skills 0 127 £4.0 £0.4 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  ‐ New Gloscol Campus * 2,600,000£             Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£             Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail‐end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub ** 6,400,000£             Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Stonehouse Improvements 4,360,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 18

A40 Over Roundabout ** 2,230,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.5 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £5.3 0 0 0 0 12

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction 1,600,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station ** 1,497,000£             Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Transport Strategy 1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout 1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way ** 500,000£                Transport 0 0 £1.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 4

Forecast Totals* 101,708,000£    3465 16484 £257.2 £98.2 104660 86.0 22453 1577

Full Programme Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014
* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GEGJC Report –21 November 2018

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline (GEGCIP)

GEGCIP (formerly the GIIP) Mapping - Public Face Update

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee
Report author Jonathan Medlin

Tel no: 01452 425013

Email: jonathan.medlin@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Background 
documents

GEGJC’s Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment 
Pipeline (CIP)
(Formerly known as the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment 
Pipeline (GIIP))

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

As listed above or on request from the report author.

Main consultees A wide range of public and private sector representatives have 
provided input to the various Council and GFirst LEP processes that 
have informed the development of the GEGCIP.

Planned dates November 21 – update on mapping
November to December 2018 – finalise mapping and live testing of 
web-hosting
January 2019 – Mapping data available to all GEGJC members and 
authorities.
2019 – Soft launch of on-line map tool, and any optional training.

Purpose of report To update on the mapping and public presentation of the CIP.

Recommendations The Joint Committee resolves to: 
1. Note the information provided in this paper as an update to 

mapping the CIP to assist in decisions about 
Gloucestershire’s growth-related strategic infrastructure 
priorities.

2. Note the developments and the relationship to the early stage 
pipeline development for Gloucestershire’s Local Industrial 
Strategy. 

Reasons for 
recommendations

To enable the GEGJC to have a clear understanding the GEGIP and 
how stakeholders may interact with the data via an online Google 
Map tool.

Resource 
Implications

There are no direct resource implications associated with this update 
paper.  Additions and changes to the CIP will necessitate small 
mapping amendments following the relevant approvals.

Page 25

Agenda Item 7

mailto:jonathan.medlin@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Background

1 The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline (CIP), 
formerly known as the GIIP (Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline) 
comprises a summary of growth enabling ‘infrastructure’ requirements brought 
together across the whole of Gloucestershire. It is reviewed, refreshed and 
updated on a regular basis to take account of emerging infrastructure 
requirements associated with the local growth agenda and provide a collective 
and informed view of future strategic resource requirements. The CIP is a live 
document which is actively managed through the GEGJC Senior Officer Group.

2 In list form the CIP is a useful document for monitoring the strategic infrastructure 
pipeline and considering which projects need resourcing, potentially as priority 
bids for relevant funding opportunities. However, to deliver a more aesthetic 
representation of the infrastructure requirements in the County as well as inform 
decisions relating to categorisation, prioritisation and new additions, a spatial 
representation has been developed. This allows interdependencies and project 
connections to be visualised and more obviously realised. In this way it is hoped 
that it may be a more accessible approach to sharing information.

3 The CIP has been reviewed over the last 3 months to deliver a wholesale refresh 
of project updates, as well as further consideration of the infrastructure categories 
to also more effectively embrace the project investment planning activities of the 
LEP. This has been considered an important objective to achieve ahead of 
partner effort to prepare a Local Industrial Strategy where one repository of 
growth enabling investment activity is likely to have more traction with 
Government.

4 To this end, the revised categories of projects relating to the broader (growth 
enabling) definition of ‘infrastructure requirements’ are: 

 Innovation
 Skills and employment
 Business environment
 Infrastructure, incl energy and digital
 Housing
 Regeneration/Place shaping
 Other

5 Furthermore, the recent review of the CIP and recent mapping exercise pilot has 
resulted in a number of recommendations which include: 

 Visible fields will relate to project name (description), category, theme, 
current position, cost, timeframe and owner. 

 Projects that are out of date will not feature on the public facing tool 
until they are updated to avoid reputational risk. The online public 
version will be updated every six months, as a minimum. 

 Working closely with the LEP, a revised Expression of Interest (EOI) 
form will be agreed to capture new project proposals that fit the re-
defined growth enabling criteria listed. This will be a standard 

Page 26



approach irrespective of whether an enquiry/opportunity comes via the 
LEP, or public sector partners to ensure a single pipeline can be 
developed and maintained ultimately. 

 The next phase of the CIP will look to add in impacts and a portfolio 
approach to allow a larger set of interlinked projects to be funded 
potentially, as well as a process for prioritisation.

Mapping Exercise - Background

6 All data from the CIP is available and updated through the GEGJC. The projects 
have been mapped and therefore it is possible to analyse infrastructure projects 
geographically.  

7 The stakeholder view is a very simple, clear mapped version of the CIP.  It takes 
the CIP database and represents the locations of each project, by category. 

8 Stakeholders are considered to be GEGJC, Gov’t depts and interested parties 
with a particular interest in a scheme or set of schemes. The visible categories 
will relate to projects under ‘Mobilising’ and ‘Seeking Funds’ only, as whilst 
projects will continue to be updated on a minimum 6 monthly basis, those 
proposals in the categories of ‘Concept’ and ‘Outline’, will only feature in the 
broader working version maintained at a Senior Officer level and until such time 
that they are more developed.

Figure 1: Sample of mapped CIP projects

9 It is possible to interrogate the data to pull through the available information taken 
directly from the CIP. Furthermore, for officers and GEGJC members, it is also 
possible to allow a deeper level of analysis, which may require some short 
training. For example, if we want to know all infrastructure projects which are 

Page 27



likely to be funded in part or full by the Growth Deal, for example, layers can be 
switched on or off accordingly. Similarly, it is possible to isolate certain 
categories. This is not recommended as a tool for general public view however.

Using the Map

10 The mapping data is held within Google Maps which is widely used and familiar 
to many. This can be viewed by a straightforward link from the GCC website 
‘Strategic Infrastructure’ section to Google Maps. Google Maps was selected due 
to its widespread use and intuitive nature which allows easy access for a wider 
audience/ the public.  

11 GEGJC member authorities will be encouraged to link to the page within the GCC 
website. This ensures that one version only is accessed and that is the most up-
to-date version which will contain the version date.

12 The link takes the user to the GEGCIP map with basic information of the 
locations and categories (See figure 2 below – taken from the test CIP Map).  

13 Clicking on a project brings up the CIP information about that project.

Figure 2: Selecting a project pulls through CIP Info

14 Where available, a further hyperlink can take the user to more detail about the 
project.

Security, Updating and Access Arrangements

15 The map will only be accessed via the GCC web pages. Periodically the map will 
be updated. If there are multiple versions or access points to the map, there is a 
risk that a user may be accessing an out of date version.

Page 28



16 The map only reflects the latest version of the CIP. The CIP is updated following 
each SOG update and then refreshed on a 6 monthly basis. It is recommended 
that any additions to the CIP continue to be made as at present and entered to 
the CIP master spreadsheet. New projects can then be mapped and the map 
updated to take account of the most up-to-date information from the project 
sponsors. This is likely to occur on a 6 monthly basis, but is capable of being 
updated more frequently if necessary, or as projects make significant progress.

Target Audience

17 The GEGCIP is a fully publically viewable document. As such, full public access 
to the GEGCIP map makes sense. An initial trial for GEGJC Members has 
resulted in some changes and ensuring that the information presented reflects 
the GEGCIP. It is therefore recommended that further testing/refinement takes 
place using the map, accessed from a newly created (as yet unwritten) section 
from GCC website, which provides a guide to the map and other infrastructure 
information.

Recommendation

18 It is recommended that the CIP mapping tool is accessed via a link from the GCC 
‘Strategic Infrastructure’ Webpages, which also has a guide to using the map. 
These pages do not yet exist but will be created and information circulated. All 
GEGJC Members are asked to provide relevant links to this page. A soft launch 
of the mapping tool is recommended for early 2019 which will become the main 
way in which members of the public can access the information.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1

STRATEGIC ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND (SEDF) 

 GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)

Date 21 November 2018 

Report author David Stanley – Accountancy Manager
Stroud District Council
Tel: 01453 754100
Email: david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Previous report (considered at the GEGJC Committee meeting held on 5 
September 2018)

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers and the GEGJC Senior Officer 
Group

Purpose of report
To update members of the committee on the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund balance and to outline the process for agreeing future 
funding commitments.

Recommendations The Committee:
1. Note the Strategic Economic Development Fund balance and 

commitments, as indicated in Appendix A.
2. Agree the allocation of SEDF balances against the projects 

provisionally agreed in September 2018, as set out below
i. £275,000 of reserves currently held in the Strategic Economic 

Development Fund are used for the purposes of revenue funding 
contribution/support for the M5 Junction 10 improvement scheme 
(Reserve funding will be available from January 2019)

ii. £50,000 of reserves currently held in the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund are used for the purposes of commissioning 
additional Economic Intelligence to support the work of the LEP and 
GCC Data and  Analysis Team,  in refreshing  the current Strategic 
Economic Plan and working towards the preparation of an Industrial 
Strategy for Gloucestershire (Reserve funding will be available from 
January 2019)

3. The Senior Officer Group (SOG) is requested to consider eligibility, 
criteria and project approval process for the assessment of future 
funding bids from the Strategic Economic Development Fund and 
make recommendations to the Joint Committee at its meeting on 20 
March 2019. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

mailto:david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk


2

Resource 
Implications

The resource implications are set out in the report and in Appendix A.  If the 
committee agree to the allocations, the balance on the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund will reduce from £1.135m to £0.215m by 2021/22.  It 
should be noted that the report does not include any future SEDF funding 
from the 2018/19 Business Rates Pool/Pilot.

Page 32



3

Background 

1. The Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP) was set up to maximise the 
business rate income retained within the County and to support economic growth 
within the geographic area of the Local Enterprise Partnership, and is led by a 
Management Team comprising of all the Councils CFOs. The existing 100% 
business rates pilot will end on 31 March 2019.  An application for Gloucestershire to 
be a 75% Pilot area was submitted to Government in late September 2018 with 
successful pilot areas due to be announced in early December 2018. 

Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF)

2. This fund is for the benefit of the whole of Gloucestershire. It facilitates collective 
work on the economic development agenda and reflects the commitment of the Pool 
participants to drive economic investment which also links to the planning and 
infrastructure process. Criteria will be established and agreed by all participants, 
against which bids for funding are assessed. The Pool Management Team to liaise 
with Chief Executives and the Leaders from each of the participating authorities to 
agree this approach. The award of funds must be agreed unanimously by each of 
the members of the Pool.  

3. The Inter authority agreement (IAA:) refers to the Strategic Economic Development 
Fund as being the fund identified as the ‘Strategic Economic Development Fund’ in 
the Rates Retention Scheme: Pooling Governance Arrangement agreed by the Chief 
Finance Officers of each of the partner Authorities. The IAA also confirms that in the 
event of any balance remaining in the SEDF following the deduction of GCC’s costs 
(capped at £5,000) and the costs of the Senior Manager (not appointed), the GEGJC 
will determine the allocation of the balance in line with the objectives of the current 
approved Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Plan (and any subsequent refresh and 
future Local Industrial Strategy), and the functions of the GEGJC.  

4. Powers of constituent members of the Committee to make the decision:  Each 
member of the committee will need to be empowered by their relevant Council to 
enable them to take the decision to be taken at the Committee. This would be a 
matter for each member of the Committee to ensure the individual member had such 
power.

Current Position and Operation of the SEDF

5. The cumulative amount of funding generated by the pool for the SEDF since 2013/14 
is £1.134m, with £0.798m of this amount arising from the 2017/18 Pool outturn 
position (these funds will be available to draw upon in January 2019).

6. The forecast position for 2018/19 indicates that £2.9m would be available to the 
SEDF from the 100% Business Rates Pilot.  It should be noted that the level of 
business rates retained and the SEDF share of the Pilot benefit is derived from Pilot 
members’ estimates of the rates collection forecast.  The actual business rates 

Page 33



4

collected may be more or less than this and some risk remains with backdated 
appeals and the NHS Trusts in particular.  The strong advice from the Pool 
Management Team (the CFOs of the Gloucestershire Councils) is that resource 
allocation decisions on any Pilot benefit will be made following the 2018/19 
outturn position (April 2019), once there is absolute clarity on both the amount 
of business rates retained and the distribution.  This reflects the risks outlined 
earlier in the report and that funds will not be available until the 2019/20 
financial year

7. Discussion at previous GEGJC meeting around the utilisation of the SEDF has 
centred around the need to provide LEP funding in 2018/19 and 2019/20, and the 
Inward Investment Programme, as set out below.

8. Initial Fund awards and commitments to date – see attached appendix (Spend 
Profile)

9. Approved:

 LEP core funding (locality match) - GEGJC November 2017) (up to £250k)
 Inward Investment programme - GEGJC November 2017)

10.At their meeting in September 2018, GEGJC considered the following funding 
requests (in principle subject to this report):

 GCC Committee Servicing costs – identified in IAA.
 J10 Business Case – GEGJC September 2018
 Economic Intelligence Commissioning - GEGJC September 2018

11.The committee needs to give consideration to the way in which further 
funding/investment requests are received and prioritised.  Due to the way in which 
the Business Rates Pool/Pilot operates, there is no guarantee of future funding.  Any 
allocation of funding from the Business Rates Pool/Pilot to the SEDF is not 
confirmed until the end of the financial year, with the SEDF not able to draw on these 
funds until the following January.

Protocol for considering other potential areas of investment 

12.Officers consider that there is a need to establish and agree an approach which 
identifies eligibility criteria and the approval process for the SEDF in relation to the 
consideration of any future projects/funding requests for the Fund. This matter needs 
to be considered by the Senior Officer Group, taking into account the following:-

 Any project/request needs to have a significant economic growth focus, and 
can clearly demonstrate the economic benefits and contribution it is likely to 
make in supporting the growth of the local economy and communities;

 SEDF is revenue funding, so will be available to support a range of initiatives 
and projects such as providing match funding contributions, commissions of 

Page 34



5

research, intelligence, feasibility studies, funding contribution to broader 
economic project.  

 Access to the fund is for the principle stakeholders only - the Local Authorities 
and Local Economic Partnership, and any project or funding request will need 
to have a sponsoring lead organisation/contact;

 Any initial Expression of Interest will need to be to be submitted for 
consideration and approval by the GEGJC Senior Officers Group (same 
approach with GIIP for new projects). Those projects considered appropriate 
will then be incorporated into the papers for the next Economic Growth Joint 
Committee, as part of the Business Rates Pool Report for approval by the 
Joint Committee members.

 Any potential successful funding requests, will be subject to the confirmation 
of sufficient funds being available in the SEDF pot during that current financial 
year by Council CFOs.

Page 35



6

Appendix A

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool – Strategic Economic Development Fund 
– Current position of fund and expenditure committed as of November 2018

Item

GEGJC 
Decsion 

Date
2018/19 
(£'000)

2019/20 
(£'000)

2020/21 
(£'000)

2021/22 
(£'000)

Funding
SEDF Balance b/f 336 555 250 220
Pool/Pilot allocation from previous year 799 0
SEDF Funding available 1,135 555 250 220

Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint Committee Nov-17 5 5 5 5
LEP Core Funding (Match) Nov-17 250 250
LEP/LA Inward Investment Programme (EU Match) tbc 25 25 25
J.10 Business Case Commission (contribution) tbc 275
Economic Intelligence Data Commissioning Fund tbc 25 25

TOTAL Allocations 580 305 30 5
SEDF Funding available (as above) 1,135 555 250 220
SEDF Balance c/f 555 250 220 215

Notes:

 LEP Core Funding beyond 2019/20 subject to future decision and availability 
of funding

 SEDF balance held by Gloucestershire County Council
 Table above does not include any future allocations to SEDF from Business 

Rates Pool/Pilot.  Current estimate of £2.9m from 100% Pilot will be confirmed 
in April and available to spend in January 2020.

Page 36


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Employment and Skills Activity Report
	6 GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership Update
	Item 6 (Appendix 1) Growth Deal Forward Look
	Item 6 (Appendix 2) Projects Summary Table Q2 18-19

	7 Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline (GEGCIP)
	9 Gloucestershire Business Rate Pool

